
 

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
Monday, 7 September 2020 at 10.00 am. This meeting will be held virtually. 
 

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 

Item 
 

Business 
 

1   Apologies  
 

2   Minutes (Pages 3 - 10) 
 
The Committee is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 20 January 2020. 
 

3   Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives - End of Year 
Assessment of Performance and Delivery 2019/20 and Impact of COVID-19 
(Pages 11 - 34) 
 
Report of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Sonia Stewart - Email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk  Tel: (0191) 433 3045 
Date: Friday, 28 August 2020 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, 20 January 2020 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor John Eagle (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): S Ronchetti, J Wallace, R Beadle, D Bradford, 

L Caffrey, D Duggan, T Graham, S Green, M Hall, R Mullen, 
B Oliphant and J Simpson 

  
  
APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): P Foy 
 
CR26 MINUTES  

 
 RESOLVED - that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2019 be 

approved as a correct record. 
 

CR27 ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

 The Committee received a report which provided an overview of health and safety 
performance for 2018/19 of Gateshead Council and identifies key priorities for 2020. 
  
The Council continues to use the principles of the HES guidance, and key priorities 
are Plan, Do, Check, Act.  These principles underpin the Council’s safety 
management system and operational processes and procedures as per the 
Council’s Corporate Health and Safety Policy and arrangements. 
  
The Committee were advised that all managers are supported by the Health and 
Safety team and as part of an ongoing cycle everything is regularly reviewed.  If any 
issues are identified they are addressed promptly. 
  
The Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service have visited a number of premises 
and have not issued any notification letters to the Council. 
  
The Occupational Health unit continues to run at full capacity which includes support 
to NEPO and CAB.  The use of the counselling service continues to grow and the 
Council is being reactive if necessary.  It has been found that this is helping 
employees to stay at work or if they are off sick helping them to get back to work 
quicker. 
  
Options are being explored to run various support groups which are something 
which employees have asked for. 
  
It was noted that councillors had asked for an idea of the costs of non-attendance at 
appointments.  This had been calculated at approximately £19,500 with officers 
looking at the worst-case scenario basis for the calculation.  There is a whole range 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

of reasons why employees are not attending appointments, sometimes it is 
employee error, sometimes it is manager error, sometimes an employee has been 
on holiday. 
  
The Committee had previously been advised of a new scheme for employees where 
they can quickly be referred to GO Gateshead.  Of 40 employees who were referred 
32 took up the and to date 12 have completed the programme. 
  
Checks made to ensure that things are happening via, reporting to the quarterly 
Corporate Health and Safety Committee, Senior Management Group and Health and 
Safety officers utilise a spreadsheet for the recording of hazards identified by 
employees.  If necessary, incidents are investigated with findings and 
recommendations reported back to responsible managers. 
  
In terms of internal assurance the Asbestos Management Team is responsible to the 
Strategic Director, Communities and Environment, within Council Housing, Design 
and Technical Services, the team works closely with the Health and Safety Team 
and during the course of the reporting period have continued to carry out the 
asbestos re-inpsections, update and deliver registers and provide technical advice to 
schools which have bought into the asbesos management package.  Officers have 
also review the corporate asbestos management plan and made any required 
changes. 
  
During the reporting period Health and Safety officers visited all schools and other 
sites when they were notified that contractors would be working.  104 sites have 
been visited and activities were monitored, risk assessment, method statements and 
training records were checked.  No major issues were identified. 
  
The health and safety team will continue to work with group management teams to 
continually improve health and safety management systems including policies, 
procedures and arrangements.  Health and safety officers will deliver the corporate 
audit programme, and the fire risk assesment programme.  Occupational Health will 
continue to meet all statutory requirements by fulfilling health surveillance 
programmes.  Work will continue on the co-ordination of employee wellbeing events 
throughout th year with the emphasis being place on the principles of THRIVE.  
Group management teams and head teachers will be informed of any significant 
changes to the Council’s corporate health ans safety policies and procedures or 
when action is necessary because of any health and safety failing via a helath and 
safety briefing note.  Senior Management Group will be advised on a quarterly basis 
on the progress being made and any issues to address. 
  
RESOLVED - That it be noted that the Committee is satisfied that the actions 

taken are appropriate and effective to maintain or improve the 
Council’s health and safety management system.  

  
  
 

CR28 THE WORK OF THE TACKLING POVERTY IN GATESHEAD BOARD  
 

 The Committee received an update on the work of the Tackling Poverty in 

Page 4



 

Gateshead Board.  The work identified and influenced by the Board seeks to 
mitigate the impact of poverty across Gateshead by encouraging place based and 
partnership approaches to delivering interventions across Gateshead and its 
communities. 
  
Following the first Gateshead Poverty Conference in February 2018 steps were 
taken to create a strategic board made up of senior figures from within the Council 
and its partners from the private and third sectors.  The board is chaired by Deputy 
Leader Councillor Catherine Donovan with Alison Dunn, Chief Executive of Citizens 
Advice Gateshead in the role of Vice Chair. 
  
To date in February 2018 and July 2019 two very well support poverty conferences 
have taken place with over 300 delegates in attendance and 15 speakers who are 
leaders in their field.  These conferences led to the creation of the board and the 
identification of 7 key themes of work: 
  

         Food Poverty 

         Fuel Poverty 

         Child Poverty 

         Housing  

         Financial Inclusion 

         Financial Education  

         Employment Skills and Wages 

  
Since the initial conference in February 2018 a great deal of intervention has taken 
place to tackle many of the injustices associated with poverty and in particular the 
key themes identified, including: 
  

       A successful bid for £204K from the DfE to deliver a Holiday Activities and 
Food Programme in Gateshead, enabling Gateshead to offer over 12,000 free 
places on holiday and food clubs across Gateshead  

       A second poverty conference planned and hosted by Gateshead with 10 
respected speakers and 150 delegates in attendance was held in 2019 

       The creation of the Gateshead Community Food Network  

       The Red Box Project, now Project Tom via the Gateshead Youth Council 

       The introduction of LEAP and ECHO supporting fuel poor households (the 
only LA in the North East at the time of the launch) 

       Delivery of Fuel Poverty Awareness Training to several frontline Council 
employees and external partners plus further delivery of accredited City & 
Guilds qualifications “Fuel Debt Advice in the Community” for the Council’s 
THRIVE team and further courses planned for 2020 

       Financial Education in Primary Schools via Newcastle Building Society and 
their annual charity boardroom challenge 

       Two planned talks on finance and poverty to be delivered to students in year 
11 and above at Heworth Grange and St Thomas More secondary schools 
and a further talk for teaching staff within Heworth Grange 

       Retirement talks for Council employees via Newcastle Building Society 

       Fraud and scams awareness sessions in partnership with Barclays and 
Northumbria Police 

Page 5



 

       Ongoing work with Gateshead Schools and EducationGateshead to offer 
poverty proofing the schools day resources free of charge to all schools in the 
borough 

       Created a Gateshead Poverty Truth Commission in partnership with the 
Methodist Church in Blaydon to ensure that the voices of those residents with 
lived poverty experiences are both heard and considered when creating 
future policy.  An official launch event is to be held on 5 March 2020 

        Worked closely with NEFirst Credit Union to facilitate a move to a prominent 
new shop front premises on Jackson Street, with a likely late January opening 

        Also with NEFirst Credit Union, continue to work in partnership to grow their 
Gateshead presence across communities, encourage more employees to 
save via salary deduction (payroll saving), and embed the credit union in all 
financial inclusion related intervention going forward, including the 
relationship with the England Illegal Money Lending Team  

  
The Board have agreed that the following areas of work are priorities for 2020 and 
will run alongside the work already ongoing: 
  

         Financial Inclusion 

         Financial Education and Poverty Proofing Schools  

         Employment Skills and Wages 

  
In addition the Board also seeks to align its work to the six priorities in the new 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy, particularly the pledges around ‘fair employment and 
good work for all’ and ‘ensure a healthy standard of living for all’. 
  
The board is also considering hosting a further major poverty event for 2020 
following the success of both conferences in 2018 and 2019.  The Board will also be 
responsive to need and will direct and allocate priority and/or resources as and when 
it is deemed appropriate. 
  
RESOLVED -  That the information presented be noted. 
  
 

CR29 CORPORATE COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE - ANNUAL REPORT - 2018/19  
 

 The Committee received a report referred by Cabinet as part of the performance 
management process, in order to ensure that the Corporate Complaints Process is 
operating satisfactorily. 
  
The corporate complaints procedure has three steps, the first of which ‘problem 
solving’, relies on the quick resolution of complaints by employees and their 
managers and does not require the complaint to be recorded.  The second stage the 
complaint is recorded, there is a formal investigation into the complaint and a written 
response is sent to the complainant usually within twenty working days.  The final 
step enables those complainants who remain dissatisfied to request the Chief 
Executive (or Managing Director of the Gateshead Housing Company) to carry out 
an independent review of the matter. 
  
In the year 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019: 

Page 6



 

  

       191 complaints were recorded 

       593 compliments were recorded 

       31 complaints were the subject of an independent review by the Chief 
Executive of the Council and the Managing Director of the Gateshead 
Housing Company undertook 17 reviews 

  
The following points for note have arisen from the statistics for 2018/19: 
  

                 191 complaints were recorded in 2018/19 compared with 258 in 2017/18 a 
decrease of 67. 

        593 compliments were recorded for the year 2018/19 compared to 466 in 
2017/18 – an increase of 127. 

                 The number of complainants requesting a review of their complaint by the 

 Chief Executive increased by 4 to 31 in 2018/19. The Managing Director of  
the Gateshead Housing Company carried out 17 reviews in 2018/19 
compared to 14 in 2017/18. 

        There were 129 complaints regarding quality of service. This is the largest of 
the six categories although a complaint can fall into more than one category. 

        The proportion of complaints found to be fully justified decreased from 36.6% 
in 2017/18 to 24.2% in 2018/19. 

        In addition, the proportion of complaints found to be partially justified 
decreased from 24.7% in 2017/18 to 17.6% in 2018/19. 

        Most importantly, the Council’s managers used the information gained 
through the monitoring of complaints to improve the provision of services. 

        The computerised recording system made it easier to track and respond to 
complaints. However, this system now requires an upgrade that reflects the 
new structure of the Council and provides improved statistical interrogation 
and analysis. A new corporate complaints system is currently being 
developed using the case management features of the Council’s Digital 
Platform to handle corporate complaints. 

        There has been a decrease in the number of complaints recorded by the 
Council during 2018/19. Additionally, there has been a decrease in 
performance of the percentage of complaints resolved within target 
timescales for the both the Council and the Gateshead Housing Company 
from 75.2% in 2017/18 to 64.9% in 2018/19. 

  
During the course of 2018/19, the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
investigated 28 complaints.  Of these 16 were closed after initial enquiries, 6 were 
not upheld and 6 were upheld partially or fully.  Each case has provided learning 
opportunities in terms of review policy, maintenance of records, the operation of 
systems and the provision of guidance and training to staff.  The Council maintains a 
good working relationship with the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
and all cases have now been settled to their satisfaction. 
  
Throughout the year the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman has 
produced a number of focus reports.  These highlight particular subjects or systemic 
issues coming from casework.  They draw on lessons learned from complaints and 
have included recommendations on good practice.  These reports may be used to 

Page 7



 

inform reviews and case studies undertaken by the Council’s overview and scrutiny 
committees.  The Ombudsman also has an Advisory Forum comprising members of 
the public who have used their service, representatives from Local Authorities and 
those who act as advocates for the public.  The Ombudsman has also, in 
consultation with the Local Government Association, produced a workbook for 
Councillors that can be access via the Local Government Association’s website. 
  
From 1 April 2013 the Localism Act 2011 extended the jurisdiction of the Housing 
Ombudsman to cover all social landlords, including Councils.  The Housing 
Ombudsman is able to consider complaints in so far as they related to the provision 
or management of housing.  The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
continues to investigate complaints about allocations and the lettings policy.  During 
2018/19 the Council has been contacted by the Housing Ombudsman in respect of 7 
cases as presented to the Cabinet. 
  
RESOLVED      -       (i)     That the information in the Annual Report be endorsed by 

the Committee. 
                                 (ii)     That the Committee is satisfied that the Corporate 

Complaints and Compliments Procedure is operating 
satisfactorily. 

 
CR30 PROGRESS ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE COUNCIL'S WORKFORCE PLAN  

 
 The Committee received an update report on the progress of the Council’s 

Workforce Plan.  The purpose of the Council’s Workforce Strategy and Plan is to 
ensure the Council has a workforce that can support delivery of services our 
residents want and need, services that provide value for money, are fit for purpose, 
flexible and customer focussed.  The strategy outline how the Council aims to 
ensure it has the right people, with the right skills and behaviours, working in the 
right jobs, at the right time. 
  
The workforce strategy is based on five themes, skills and behaviours; recruitment 
and retention; pay, reward and recognition; wellbeing and engagement; and 
performance and change. 
  
A workforce plan provides a detailed delivery plan for each of the five themes.  The 
plan is a dynamic document which is continually developed to respond to the 
Council’s current workforce requirements, and to prepare for future changes. 
  
The following update is on the progress made since the last report to Committee in 
October 2018. 
  
Gateshead Leadership Development Programme (GLDP) 
  
The Council seeks to maintain and develop strong, diverse and competent leaders 
who can deliver its corporate and public service ambitions.  Therefore, a key priority 
is to invest in the development of our employees as leaders of the organisation, so 
they are equipped to deliver services to support the Thrive agenda. 
  
The content of a new leadership development programme is currently being drafted, 

Page 8



 

once finalised, it will be rolled out to the leadership team, service managers and all 
other managers within the Council.  Ultimately if resources allow, the ambition is to 
provide leadership development to those employees who are not yet in management 
positions but are ‘ready’ to move up, therefore developing leadership potential. 
  
Coaching Culture 

  
The modern employer is expected to support and engage its staff in the work they 
do, to help unlock their potential and maximise the overall performance of the 
organisation.  One drive for this is to adopt a coaching style in the conversations we 
have with each other and in the way we work. 
  
Learning and Development Framework 

  
A learning and development framework is available on the intranet as a one-stop 
shop for managers and employees to access information on courses and other 
resources and guidance to support their development.  The framework has been in 
place for some time and the Workforce Development Team is currently evaluating its 
content, with a view to streaming the available modules and move to a greater 
emphasis on e-learning as a flexible, cost effective way of providing training. 
  
Mentoring and Coaching 

  
One of the initiatives identified in the Council’s Workforce Plan which will build 
leadership capacity is to provide opportunities for employees to access mentoring to 
support their development.  Mentoring is a development technique based on the use 
of one-to-one discussions to enhance an individual’s work skills, behaviour, 
performance and/or knowledge and involves a more experienced employee using 
their greater knowledge, experience and understanding of the work or the workplace 
to support the development of a more junior or less experienced employee. 
  
Apprenticeships 

  
Apprenticeships are government funded work-based training programmes for people 
aged 16-65, combining on and off-the job training.  Recruiting apprentices and using 
apprenticeship programmes for current employees helps organisation to grow their 
own talent by developing a motivated, skilled and qualified workforce. 
  
The HR/Workforce Development team is leading on the Council’s apprenticeship 
programme with the development of an apprenticeship strategy and delivery plan 
which aims to: 
  

       Embed a positive apprenticeship culture 

       Maximise workforce capability by identifying and promoting a range of 
suitable apprenticeship opportunities for new apprentices and existing 
employees 

       Provide advice and support to managers on apprenticeships 

       Negotiate apprenticeship training programmes on behalf of the Council 

       Support and reflect the council’s wider responsibilities e.g. as a corporate 
parent and achieving targets for care leavers entering apprenticeships 

Page 9



 

       Engage with training providers and other local authorities to maximise 
apprenticeship provision within the region 

  
Work is ongoing to develop an employee recognition scheme, and officers are in the 
process of working on a Financial Wellbeing Scheme.  This month a salary sacrifice 
scheme is being introduced for employees who wish to make Additional Voluntary 
Contributions to a pension fund which would allow them to increase benefits which 
can be withdrawn from 55 onwards. 
  
Work is ongoing to update the workforce strategy and plan and officers are currently 
talking to service directors with regards to their needs. 
  
It was suggested that there should be something with regards to Equality and 
Diversity.  It was noted that it is not listed as a separate theme but is touched on. 
  
It was suggested that in terms of the development of staff there should be a way of 
looking at work staff do outside of the Council which may mean they have skills 
which could be transferrable to support their work within the Council. The Council 
does offer an Employer Supported Volunteering Scheme which gives employees the 
opportunity to develop new skills and gain experience which may be transferable to 
the workplace. 
  
RESOLVED -  That the information contained within the report be noted.  
 

CR31 ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME REPORT  
 

 The Committee received it’s Annual Work Programme Report. The report highlights 
any changes to the work programme for the municipal year. 
  
RESOLVED -           (i)    that the provisional programme be noted. 
                                (ii)    that further reports on the work programme may be brought 

to the Committee to identify any issues which the 
Committee may be asked to consider. 

 
 
 
 

Chair……….……………….. 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

      CORPORATE RESOURCES  
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

                                       7th September 2020 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:     Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives - End of 

Year Assessment of Performance and Delivery 2019/20 and 
Impact of COVID-19 

  
REPORT OF:  Darren Collins, Strategic Director, Resources and Digital  

SUMMARY  

This report provides the end of year update of performance and delivery for the period 
ending 31 March 2020 in relation to the Council’s Thrive agenda for the indicators and 
activity linked to Corporate Resources. It also provides a high-level overview of the impact 
of the COVID-19 pandemic on performance. 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background  
 

1. The report forms part of the Council’s performance management framework and gives 
an overview of progress for the priorities appropriate to the remit of the Corporate Re-
sources Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 

2. The Council’s new strategic approach Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone 
Thrives, was approved by Cabinet in March 2018, to ensure the Council continues to 
get the best outcomes for local people and remains a viable and sustainable organisa-
tion into the future.  

 

3. While the report follows the standard framework for the Year End 2019/20 perfor-
mance, it also identifies the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on performance as well 
potential future implications.  

 
Delivery and Performance  
 

4. This report sets out the performance overview linked to the 14 strategic outcome indi-
cators, identified as providing a high-level picture of the strategic priorities for the 
Council in relation to Corporate Resources.  
 

5. All 14 indicators are listed in appendix 1 with performance data provided where this is 
available at the end of the period. There is also an update on key activities and 
achievements over the last 6 months, with key activities being undertaken in each ser-
vice area in the upcoming 6-month period also identified along with the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Recommendation 
 

6. It is recommended that the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 

 consider whether the activities undertaken during October to March 2020 are 
supporting delivery of the Thrive agenda:  

 to identify any areas, they feel they require more detail about or feel require 
further scrutiny; and 

 note that Cabinet will consider a composite performance report at its meeting 
on 20 October 2020. 

 

Contact:  Lindsay Murray                             Ext: 2794  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



 

 

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives –  
Year-end Assessment of Performance and Delivery 2019/20 

 
7 September 2020  

 

Portfolio: Leader 

Portfolio 
Member: 

Councillor Martin Gannon 

OSC Chair: Councillor John Eagle 

Lead Officers: Lindsay Murray, Service Director, Commercialisation & Improvement 
Andrea Tickner, Service Director, Corporate Commissioning & 
Procurement 
Marisa Jobling, Service Director, Customer Experience & Digital 
John Shiel, Service Director, Financial Management 

 
1.0   Introduction 
 
1.1 This report relates to how well the Council is achieving against the strategic 

approach of Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives and the five 
Council Pledges: 

 
 Put People and families at the heart of everything we do 
 Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance 
 Support our communities to support themselves and each other 
 Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for 

employment, innovation, and growth across the borough 
 Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead 

 
1.2 Progress and achievements of strategic indicators, in line with the committee’s 

remit, are provided along with areas of future focus.  
 

1.3 Tables highlighting an update to the six-month performance and the performance of 
the strategic indicators are provided in section’s B and C. 
 

1.4 Appendix 1 provides a summary of the current position relating to the 
implementation of budget proposals that have previously been highlighted as 
potentially having a disproportionate impact in relation to equalities. 

 
2.0      Recommendation  
 
2.1     The Committee is asked to consider:  
 

(i) whether the activities undertaken during October 2019 to the end of March 
2020 are supporting delivery of the Thrive Agenda;  

(ii) any areas they feel they require more detail on or require further scrutiny; and 
(iii) note that Cabinet will consider a composite performance report at their 

meeting on 20 October 2020. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

 
Section A 
 
3.0     Performance Overview 
 
3.1      The committee receives performance data relating to 14 strategic indicators. Of the 

14 indicators, 9 indicators show improved performance, 2 show a slight reduction in 
performance and 1 with no change. Two indicators have no performance data, with 
one of these setting the baseline in 2019/20. 

 

 
 

 
4.0     Putting people and families at the heart of everything we do 

 
Performance 
 

4.1      Two strategic indicators have been identified that link to the Council pledge of 
putting people and families at the heart of everything we do: 

 Performance relating to the speed of processing housing benefit claims has 
shown an improvement of 3.12 days compared to the previous year’s 
performance of 6.2 days. To some degree, this is the result of prioritising of 
Housing Benefit claims, changes and the reduction in the caseload due to 
Universal Credit. Further work with automation of changes has also been carried 
out which has helped improve processing times and the benefit team has 
proactively engaged with the Department for Work and pensions (DWP) 
initiatives to identify unreported changes at the earliest opportunity. 

 To support the Council’s role as corporate parents to children and young people 
who are looked after, the Council has a strategic indicator to achieve a year on 
year increase in the number of young people leaving care who are supported to 
have an opportunity in the Council for an apprenticeship. The year-end figure for 
2019/20 apprenticeships remains at 2.  

 
Further information is provided in section C of this report.  
 

5 

3 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Support our Communities Invest in Economy Working Together People and Families

Summary of Direction of Travel for indicators 

Improved Declined No change No data

Page 13



 

 

Achievements, Challenges and Actions and Impact of COVID-19 on 
Performance 

  
4.2      COVID-19 has affected the lives and livelihoods of all those in Gateshead and the 

Council has worked hard to ensure that plans were in place and implemented to 
support local residents, particularly the most vulnerable.   

 
4.3 Between 23 March and 26 June 2020, the benefits team took over 10,200 calls from 

benefit claimants.  The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on 
people’s personal financial circumstances. Whilst this has had some impact on the 
number of Housing Benefit applications and changes in circumstances, the main 
impact has been the increase in claimants moving to Universal Credit (99 claimants 
moving in March 2020 compared to an average of 70 a month in the preceding five 
months) and the increase in applications and changes relating to Council Tax 
Support. In March 2020, 2,370 applications for Council Tax Support were received, 
compared to 556 in February 2020. 

 
4.4      As a result, the Council is facing significant challenge in terms of ensuring these 

applications are processed and applicants receive their benefits in a timely manner 
to avoid any further financial hardship. The Hardship Fund, announced by the 
Ministry of Housing Communities & Local Government will be delivered to over 
13,100 Council Tax accounts. 

 
4.5      Housing Benefit employees are working from home and have direct contact with 

customers by telephone and email. This has allowed us to ensure our service 

delivery has continued in full including achieving improvements in performance 

compared to last year (8.66 days in May 2020 compared to 10.63 days in May 

2019) in processing claims.   

 

4.6     The Benefits team continue to seek performance improvement by implementing 

further software changes and working with DWP to identify more efficient ways of 

sharing data, such as HMRC earnings and household data matches. The team has 

continued to build capacity in terms of welfare advice and provision by training more 

officers in this area and taking a holistic view of a person’s circumstances.  The 

calls in relation to benefits have also enabled employees to talk to customers and 

enquire about overall welfare and working with others around more complex cases.   

 

4.7     The Council will continue to support the Borough’s Housing benefit, Council Tax 

Support and Universal credit claimants by working with others such as DWP, 

Citizen’s Advice Gateshead, local food banks and the community hubs. 

 

5.0      Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance 

 
Performance 
 

5.1     This committee does not monitor specific strategic indicators relating to this Council 
pledge. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

 

Achievements, Challenges and Actions 
 

5.2     The purpose of gender pay reporting is to show the difference between the average 
earnings of men and women. Under the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and 
Public Authorities) Regulations 2017, we have a legal duty to report on gender pay. 
The regulations require us to publish key information based on an agreed 
methodology.  Due to the pandemic, the government suspended the requirement to 
report gender pay information, however, the Council submitted its information 
regardless.   

5.3      Data for the 31st March 2019 shows the mean hourly rate of pay for all male full-pay 
relevant employees is £14.41. The mean hourly rate of pay for all female full-pay 
relevant employees is £13.25. The mean gender pay gap equates to 8.04% which 
is a decrease from 9.68% in 2018. The median hourly rate of pay for all male full-
pay relevant employees is £12.77 while median hourly rate of pay for all female full-
pay relevant employees is £11.57. The median gender pay gap therefore equates 
to 9.39% which is a decrease from 12.06% in 2018. 

  Number 
of Males 

% of 
Males 

Number of 
Females 

% of 
Females 

Lower quartile 226 22.9 761 77.1 

Lower middle quartile 354 35.9 633 64.1 

Upper middle quartile 381 38.6 606 65.1 

Upper quartile 395 40.1 591 59.9 

For the purposes of this data (as specified in the regulations) a pay period of one month equates to 30.44 days. The calculations are based on 'full-pay relevant 

employees'.  

5.4      Future action to address the gender pay gap includes a focus on learning and 
development at all levels within the organisation, using the Appraisal & 
Development (A&D) scheme and maximising employee potential toolkit. Providing 
A&Ds are carried out in accordance with the scheme, and regular monitoring and 
1:1 meetings take place, every employee should be provided with opportunities to 
maximise their potential and progress within the organisation. Over recent years, 
austerity measures have meant that there are fewer recruitment and promotion 
opportunities, however, discussions about career aspirations provide an opportunity 
for employees to develop into potential future roles; this will support succession 
planning and help retain talent within the organisation.  It is too early to say whether 
COVID-19 will impact on the gender pay gap, however, embracing new ways of 
service delivery in the future, and associated ways of working, particularly more 
home working and flexible working could have a positive impact on the gender pay 
gap.     

 

5.5.    Maximising the take-up of apprenticeships for current employees across the Council 
is also a priority which, again, will support career development in the longer term.  
During the pandemic work has continued on delivering the commitments in the 
Apprenticeship Strategy and Plan, although some new start apprenticeships have 
had to be paused.  Wherever possible, current apprentices have continued to 

Page 15



 

 

develop and learn, albeit remotely, working with training providers to minimise 
disruption.    

 

5.6      During 2019/20, the Council provided a wide range of equality and diversity training 
for employees and partner organisations. Courses ranged from Hate / Mate Crime 
to Honour Based Violence to training on cultural awareness. During 2019/20, 221 
council employees attended one or more of these courses.   COVID-19 has 
impacted on the ability to deliver some face-to-face learning, however, the 

opportunity to develop more on-line and virtual training has been embraced. 0 
 

5.7      Appendix 1 summarises the assessments provided by services of the equality 
impact of budget proposals following implementation. Three proposals are 
recommended to continue to be monitored. The Committee will receive a further 
update in December 2020. 

  
6.0      Support our communities to support themselves and each other  

 

Performance  
 

6.1     Five Strategic Indicators (all relating to the % increase in on-line transactions) have 
been identified as Supporting our Communities.  These relate to the Council’s 
Digital Programme and the Council pledge to support our communities to support 
themselves and each other and have seen a percentage increases in online 
transactions have improved on the previous year.  

 

6.2     Online payments - £21.26m in online payments were taken, representing annual 
increase of 15% compared to an increase of 18.2% in 2018/19. We anticipate a 
significant increase again in 2020/21, as even more residents switch to online 
payments rather than the traditional methods of payments. 
 

          Further information is provided in section C of this report.  
 

             6.3     Fly-tipping reports – 2018/19 was a baseline year for the indicator. 5,003 fly tips 
were reported by the public in 2018/19, 57.4% reported online and 42.65% reported 
via telephone calls. The 2019/20 data reveals 5,145 fly tips were reported by the 
public with online reporting up to 65.2% with 34.8% reported using the telephone. 

 

       6.4     Garden Waste Subscription - £799,361 in garden waste subscriptions were 
collected in 2018/19, with 16,275 subscriptions (66.38%) paid for online in 2018/19. 
A new online system using the Digital Platform was introduced for 2019/20. This 
scheme is open until the end of August 2020 but has so far collected £800,575 in 
come with 17,710 subscriptions (71.5%) paid online. 

 

        6.5    Registrars Appointments – Online registrations for birth and death appointments        
were launched using the Digital Platform on 13 March 2019. Therefore, 2019/20 is     
the baseline year for this indicator. This period 4,403 birth and death appointments   
were made using the system with 56.44% made online and 43.65% using the       
telephone. 70.46% of birth appointments and 45.43% of death registration          
appointments were made online. Since 1 April 2020 76% of birth registration 
appointments have been made online with 51.6% of death registration 
appointments made online.  

 

6.6    Adult Social Care forms – Adult social care online forms were launched in 
November 2018, therefore 2019/20 is the full baseline year. In 2019/20 4,265 online 
contact forms were received with 1,758 (41.22%) being social care assessments; 
1,156 (27.1%) social care reviews; 1,154 (27.06%) social care enquires and 197 

Page 16



 

 

(4.61%) submitted by practitioners. This compares to 22,661 telephone calls 
received by the Adult Social care Direct team over the same period. 
 

Achievements, Challenges and Actions including impact of COVID-19 on 
Performance 

 
  6.7   In the last six months of 2019/20, several digital services were launched including a 

new version of the garden waste subscriptions. The social care contact forms were 
expanded with the inclusion of a form for social care practitioners allowing external 
organisations to submit requests to Adult Social Care Direct. An online ordering 
system for minor works was launched to manage occupational therapy requests. To 
support the new Landlord Licensing Scheme, a detailed online application process 
was made available to assist with scheme management. 

 
   6.8  In March 2020, the old corporate complaints system was completely replaced with a 

new digital solution to improve the management and reporting complaints. 

   6.9  The launch of garden waste subscriptions resulted in an increase in residents 
registering with My Gateshead Account www.gateshead.gov.uk/myaccount which 
now has 8,597 registered users. 

  6.10 The focus for the period April to September 2020 will be to continue responding to 
the impact of the COVID19 pandemic. The provision of digital services has come to 
the fore during this time as it has often become the primary method in which to 
contact and transact with the Council. The closure of the Civic Centre and other 
council and housing company offices resulted in a reduction in cash payments, but 
an increase in online payments. For example, there has been a 17.9% increase in 
internet payments, to the value of £6.2m in the first quarter of 2020/21 compared to 
the previous year. 

   6.11 To support the Gateshead community hubs established in March 2020 in response 
to the consequences of the pandemic, the Digital Platform was used to develop a 
case management solution that supported customer contact. In addition, a hotline 
telephone number was provided for those residents who required emergency 
support. As at 1 July 2020, over 4,200 Gateshead residents have been supported 
via these contact channels. 

6.12  As well as the development of the community hubs case management system, an 
online personal protective equipment (PPE) application process was also provided 
to assist officers in collating requirements from schools and care providers. 

6.13 Other services that have been required to support businesses have included an 
online business directory for businesses providing support during COVID19 and 
applications for both business rates grant and a Local Authority discretionary grant 
fund. Currently in development is an online application process for pavement 
licenses to support pubs and restaurants re-opening. 

6.14 As Council services have restarted, the Digital Programme has supported the 
recovery phase as they have adapted to new ways of working for household waste 
and recycling centres, garden waste, bulky waste collections, registrars' bookings, 
parking charges and the Libraries ring and read service being recent examples. 

Page 17

http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/myaccount


 

 

6.15  The Digital Platform has been fundamental to the delivery of online solutions and 
services that have mobilised the Council’s response to Government initiatives and 
enabled Gateshead’s businesses and residents to be supported.  

6.16 Work has also now restarted on the Digitising Customer Experience project, 
including business re-engineering, end to end service redesign, streamlining 
processes and systems. This aims to provide a joined-up experience across all 
channels by handling customer contact in a consistent manner. The focus in the 
next 6 months will include waste management, special collections, street cleansing 
and enforcement, street lighting and furniture and household waste permits. 

6.17 The Council has been working to support greater digital inclusion as well as  
supporting people who may have difficulties.  For example, during the pandemic, the 
Council has been unable to accept cash though has ensured alternative payment 
methods are available.  This has included online, over the telephone, use of a 
payment card, standing order and Direct Debit.  Likewise, residents can still contact 
the Council by telephone to report issues or book appointments. 

6.18 The Council is planning the development of a tablet lending service for priority 
residents as part of a project involving IT and the library service. The project will 
reuse old, but fully functional, IT equipment.  Analysis shows that over 70% of IT 
users in libraries can be categorised as “financially stretched” or live in areas of 
“urban adversity”. The library service will engage fully with the developing initiative 
Working Gateshead, to support people digital excluded to find work post pandemic.  

              7         Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, 
          innovation and growth across the borough 
 
          Performance 
 

7.1     There are five strategic indicators identified that support investment in economy, 
innovation and growth.  These relate to the collection of Council Tax and Business 
Rates; Payment of undisputed invoices; Superfast Broadband connectivity and 
Services for Schools business (though 2019/20 represents the baseline setting year 
for Services for Schools). 

7.2 Council Tax collection performance (% of Council Tax Collected) in 2019/20 was 
95.9%, compared to 95.7% in 2018/19. Although the target of 96.6% was not 
achieved, the collection rate improved by 0.2%, albeit with an additional £5.5 million 
in Council Tax to collect during 2019-20.  Some of the improvements made to how 
we collect Council Tax include helping customers to pay their current charge first, 
so avoiding additional costs; ensuring arrangements are affordable and sustainable; 
being empathetic; acknowledging individual circumstances; giving extra time and 
flexibility when a customer requires this; and providing financial advice and 
signposting customers to this when it is needed.               

7.3     Universal Credit continues to have a negative impact on collection, however the 
Council Tax team continues to ensure that residents are supported and provides an 
empathetic service aiming to ensure that any payment arrangement that is made is 
done so in accordance with each individual’s circumstances, with the priority being 
that payments are affordable and sustainable.   

7.4     We actively identify any unclaimed discounts, exemptions or benefits and give 
residents the help and guidance they may need in order to receive these.  

Page 18



 

 

7.5 Business Rate collection performance (% of Business Rates Collected) in 2019/20 
was 97.5%, compared to 98% in 2018/19. Collection performance was slightly 
under the target of 97.6% and would have been achieved but for the impact of 
Covid-19 which meant that some ratepayers who pay at the end of each month 
were unable to do so at the end of March 2020. 

7.6     Collection performance was impacted by the current difficulties in the economy. The 
amount of uncollected business rates wrote off during 2019/20 increased by £704k 
to a total of £1.3m (compared to a total of £670k in 2018/19). This is due to a 
significant increase in business insolvencies.  

7.7      Any balances written off are still classed as collectable for the purposes of 
calculating our collection rate. If we had the same level of write offs in 2019-20 as 
we had in 2018-19 our collection rate would have been 98% which would have 
matched our previous year performance. 

7.8  87.7% of undisputed invoices were paid on time by the Council, which represents a 
sustained improvement from 2017/18 where this was 78.9%.  The improvement is 
largely the result of a review of business processes which have enabled speedier 
payments of invoices. 

7.9  The direction of travel for the rollout of Superfast Broadband continues to remain 
positive with a further increase during the year. The number of premises able to 
obtain fibre optic based Superfast Broadband is now available to 97.7% of premises 
in Gateshead which compares favourably against the UK average figure of 96.4%. 

Achievements, challenges and actions including impact of COVID-19 on 
performance: 

7.10 Between 23 March and 26 June 2020, the Council Tax team took over 13,800 calls 
from council taxpayers. Council tax customers have been given payment breaks 
and extended arrangements for payment to March and beyond, where customers 
have told us they were struggling to pay. 

7.11 Flexible payment options for council tax arrears have been agreed and officers have 
ensured that any arrangements made are affordable and sustainable and the team 
have stressed to each customer that they should tell us if they find they are 
struggling. 

7.12 A specialist team focuses on providing help to residents who have contacted the 
Council Tax team. These residents have significant challenges in their lives, which 
is often the main reason for payments not being made. The challenges can include 
but are not limited to multiple other debts, addictions, abuse (past and current) 
mental health issues (including suicidal, post-traumatic stress disorder), learning 
difficulties and victims of loan sharks.  Inevitably the pandemic is also now playing a 
part in this.   

7.13    From April 2020, the Council had responsibility for issuing government payments 
from the Small Business Grant fund (£10,000) and Retail Hospitality and Leisure 
Grant Fund (£25,000). As at 30 June 2020, 3,156 grants were issued to businesses 
for a total value of £36.975 million. The Council is also using this contact with 
business rate payers to signpost for additional support. 

7.14   From June 2020, the Council is supporting businesses that were not eligible for the 
above grants via the COVID-19 Business Support Grants: Local Authority Grant 
Fund. Up to 1 July 2020, 110 payments have been issued for a value of £570,000.   

Page 19



 

 

7.15   The Council’s approach to debt recovery was paused as a result of the pandemic, 
however, from the beginning of July, this will be restarted providing a supportive 
approach that encourages contact, offers advice and guidance and signposts to any 
specific support people and businesses may need.  

7.16   The collection of council tax and business rates continues to be an important 
element of income generation so that the Council’s Thrive agenda can be achieved. 
Areas of future focus relate to learning from the Council’s public service reform 
activity to develop a supportive financial approach for those people who can’t pay, 
whilst conversely developing a harder approach for those people who won’t pay, for 
example seeking to use legislation such as the Digital Economy Act to pursue debt 
recovery, by effective data-sharing with other local authorities. 

7.17    Committee received the corporate asset management annual delivery and 
performance report in December 2019. This report provided an update on the 
progress made against the Council’s Corporate Asset Strategy & Management Plan 
and the year on year performance of the property portfolio. 

7.18    The Council’s Tenanted Non-Residential Portfolio (TNRP) transferred to PSP LLP, 
the limited liability partnership jointly owned by the Council and Public Sector plc.  In 
the second half of 2019/20, a further £529k of capital receipts were secured from 
the sale of surplus assets bringing the total year end value of assets sold to £699k. 
A further £1.15m of rent was received from PSP LLP, giving a total of £2.32m. This 
meant the LLP generated sufficient cash to meet the Guaranteed Minimum Rent 
payable to the Council. In addition, profit rent of approximately £270k has been 
generated, with the Council receiving £205k as its share. 

7.19   The marketing of surplus asset sites continues, however, there may be an impact 
and measures are being looked at to deal with the pandemic. While major projects 
such as Gateshead Quays, High Street South and speculative office development 
at Baltic Quarter construction sites closed during March. The full impact of the 
pandemic of Covid 19 will become clear in the figures for 2020/21. 

 

7.20    For 2019/20 schools and academies were offered over 50 services provided by the 
Council. These covered three broad thematic areas:  

 Pupil Focused Services such as Education Psychology 

 Facilities Management Services such as school cleaning 

 Professional & Technical Services such as payroll provision 
 

7.21   In total schools and academies received services from the Council to the value of      
£12.6m (baseline for 2019/20). This represents a positive outcome in the context of 
an increasingly challenging market.  Throughout the year the Council has continued 
to develop its co-ordinated and increasingly customer focused approach to schools. 
Positive discussions have been held with schools and these have been used to 
shape the offer to meet school needs. This resulted in just under 200 different 
packages being available to schools. The quality of services continues to be high, 
for example, the catering service was singled out for the fourth year running by 
APSE as the UK’s top performing school meals provider. 

 

7.22   The ability of schools to buy back services is complicated by both significant and 
increasing budget pressures and the rapid rise of academisation and multi academy 
trusts (MATS - which often seek large scale contracts that cover a wider 
geographical area). The COVID-19 pandemic is also increasing pressures in this 
area.  At the same time the costs of providing services are increasing such as unit 
costs for ingredients for school meals and staff salaries as the Council is committed 

Page 20



 

 

to supporting local employment and paying the Living Wage. The Council has 
worked hard to develop a competitive pricing strategy that provides value for money 
as well as quality for schools and their pupils, whilst supporting Community Wealth 
Building.   

 
7.23   In preparation for the 2020/21 year, the Council hosted a marketplace event on 22 

January 2020, where schools and academies were invited to speak with service 
providers and hear what was on offer. Schools originally had until 20 March 2020, to 
secure their SLAs, although this was extended to 30 May 2020, as many schools 
were focused on dealing with closures and other measures needed due to Covid-
19. All schools have now responded.  There has been minimal reduction in buy- 
back when compared to the previous year, demonstrating the strength of the 
Council’s offer, though income-based services face a significant challenge due to 
COVID-19 implications. This is because that while buy back from schools has been 
strong, there are several income-based services such as School Catering, the 
Music Service and School Sports Partnerships, which rely on schools being open in 
order to deliver their service. This will continue to be monitored. 

 

8.0      Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead - 
 

           Performance 
 

8.1      There are two strategic indicators identified that support the Council pledge to       
work together, as follows: 

 As reported at the six- month stage, the 2018 staff survey saw an increase in 
employees feeling that the Council is a good place to work, with responses 
showing a rise from 64% in 2016 to 73% in 2018. Following a senior 
management review no survey took place in 2019/20, however, once pandemic 
response has settled, it would be appropriate to carry out a further staff survey. 

 The 2019-20 year-end performance for the strategic indicator reporting on the 
number of days staff sickness absence per FTE (excluding school staff) has  
been recorded as 11.9 which is a slight increase on the previous year’s figure  
of 11.4 days but still down on the 2017-18 figure of 12.75 days.  

 

Further information is provided in section C of this report.  
 

Achievements, Challenges and Actions including Impact of COVID-19 on 
Performance 

 

8.2    Several challenges remain on further reducing staff absence. One of the key areas is 
around the consistent application of management action in accordance with the 
agreed absence management procedures.  Managers and HR have continued to 
deal with sickness absences during ‘lockdown’, although initially this was challenging 
as it is difficult to conduct empathetic yet business-like meetings with employees and 
their representatives in a COVID-safe manner.   Sickness levels amongst employees 
continue to be monitored, though there has not been any significant change as a 
result of the pandemic. At present data is only available across the whole Council for 
part of the 1920/21 year.  FTE days for April were 12.06; May was 11.79 and June 
was 11.25.  It is intended to consider how sickness absence levels compare with 
previous years, once data is available and analysed for the period of the COVID-19 
pandemic. This continues to be monitored and will be included in the next report to 
Committee. 

 

8.3.   In January 2020 the North East Better Health at Work Award submission was 
approved, with the Council ‘maintaining excellence’ for a further year. The Council 

Page 21



 

 

will work towards ‘Ambassador’ status, which is where the assessment recognises 
that the Council is going above and beyond to improve the health and wellbeing of 
employees.  

 

8.4.  In terms of tackling stress, every service has been required to complete a Work 
Related Stress Action Plan which addresses the issues raised in employee focus 
groups. Action plans are monitored at quarterly health and safety meetings. A further 
review of these plans will be required to align with the Council’s new staffing structure 
implemented in November 2019, and the impact of Covid-19 on related stress.  HR 
and OH&S have continually reminded employees throughout the pandemic of the 
support available in relation to mental health and physical health, especially for those 
who are working remotely.  In some areas e.g. social care, the Occupational Health 
Doctor has facilitated sessions to enable staff to have group and one-to-one 
discussions about the impact on their mental health in respect of working closely with 
residents who may have tested positive for COVID-19.   

 

8.5    The Tackling Poverty in Gateshead Board is to take place, led by Alison Dunn and 
Councillor Catherine Donovan. This has been delayed due to the ongoing COVID-19 
pandemic, however progress is highlighted below: 
 The Council has worked closely with NEFirst Credit Union to bring about a 

premise move from their rarely visited branch at the bottom of the Interchange 
Building to a highly prominent shop front location on Jackson Street. This now 
provides NEFirst with the opportunity to raise its profile in Gateshead, grow its 
membership and offer much needed ethical and affordable financial services 
often to those who are financially excluded. 

 In addition, the Council has worked with a subgroup of the NEFirst Board to 
develop a rebrand, which launched earlier this year, giving a new and modern 
look for the business. 

 The Council has supported NEFirst financially via the Growth Reserve to cover 
costs associated with rents, rates and fit out costs, without which the move could 
not have taken place. 

 The Council continues to support NEFirst in its endeavours to develop a 
marketing and growth plan for Gateshead, which will be aided by the 
appointment of a Senior Council Officer to the NEFirst Board. 

 LEAP (Local Energy Assistance Partnership) which launched last year has been 
very successful. The programme, which offered a free 1-2-1 home visit with a 
qualified energy advisor resulted in: 281 home visits; 3,217individual energy 
efficiency measures installed in Gateshead homes; £225,000 of additional annual 
income identified via referrals to Income Max charity; and over £627K of lifetime 
energy bill savings identified for Gateshead households. 

 The Gateshead Poverty Truth Commission launched on 5th March in the Council 
Chamber and was a highly emotive event, drawing calls of action from a number 
of elected members and business leaders to do more for Gateshead’s most 
disadvantaged residents having heard first-hand the testimonies of local people 
with lived experience of Poverty in Gateshead. The next step has been halted 
due to COVID-19 but will recommence with the bringing together of those 
testifiers and those in positions of power to collaborate on making change. 

 The Council brought in, via its relationship with Citizens Advice, a series of free 
‘Gambling Awareness Training’ sessions across four dates, which were made 
available to public facing employees. The training taught employees how to 
identify signs of problem gambling and how to offer of refer for specialist support. 

Page 22



 

 

 Accredited Level 2 ‘Fuel Debt Advice in the Community’ training was delivered to 
more frontline Council employees, ensuring they can identify and address fuel 
related issues for Gateshead households or refer to specialist services.  

 
8.6      In February 2019, Council agreed the Budget and Council Tax Levy for 2019/20. 

This was set at £206.999m. The Budget in 2019/20 included £13.113m of savings 
and income growth, which closed the funding gap for the year, in response to 
Government funding reductions and increased service demand pressures. This was 
subsequently revised to £207.262m on November 2019, following the receipt of 
additional funding of £0.263m. The Budget outturn will be finalised in the Spring 
with a report to Cabinet in June 2020. 

 
8.7      The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was updated and agreed by Cabinet 

in October 2019. It is based on a financial forecast over a rolling five-year timeframe 
to 2023/24. The MTFS sets the financial context for the Council’s resource 
allocation process and budget setting. The MTFS will be fully reviewed in October 
2020 and will take account of the difficult financial position. 

 
8.8 The hugely challenging financial context is predicted to continue over the medium 

term and the high levels of uncertainty around future funding reforms and the 
economy as a result of the pandemic, which are likely to add to the potential for 
financial volatility and risk.  

 
8.9      Providing mechanisms for the involvement of local people and communities of 

Gateshead in the work of the Council is a core aim. To facilitate these 
conversations the Council undertakes various consultation exercises each year. 
During the last six months of 2019/20, 41 consultations have been undertaken 
using the consultation portal – 20 of which related to traffic and transport schemes. 
There have been several significant public consultations, including Gateshead 
Quays Development Framework, a review of the polling districts and stations, air 
quality final proposals, the regeneration proposals for Gateshead High Street south, 
Bewick’s Customer Survey and the review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Vehicle policy and conditions. A total of 5,297 responses were received from 
Gateshead residents and other stakeholders. 

 
8.10    The Council commenced a Household Impact of COVID-19 survey on 23 June 

alongside a Gateshead Business Survey.  The findings will be important in 
developing our response to the pandemic accounting for local demand and needs.  

 
Resilience and Emergency Planning 
 
8.11   Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive regular updates on 

the Council’s resilience and emergency planning. An update was provided on 9th 

September 2019. Highlights from the remainder of 2019/2020 include: 

 Supporting the Direct Public Health Team with the corporate response to 

Coronavirus (COVID-19).  Our pre-existing plans were used in the initial 

response and were continually adapted to manage the evolving situation 

nationally, regionally and locally. 

 Further recruitment to the Emergency Response Team has been undertaken 

and the team has 13 new members from various groups and services.  All 

officers have received inductions, role specific training and the equipment 

required to safely allow them to fulfil these roles effectively  

Page 23



 

 

 A programme of refresher training for the Emergency Response Team has 

been completed following the development of a training needs analysis a 

number of be-spoke training sessions were held to raise awareness and up-skill 

employees in the roles of HQ Coordinators and Site Incident Officers. 

 The Emergency Response Team has worked with the Council’s IT Services 

over a period of several months to develop a bespoke new Emergency 

Response SharePoint site, to replace the existing system. This new web-based 

site, which went live at the beginning of February 2020, offers users better 

connectivity, without a reliance on Council system availability and was 

extensively during the COVID-19 response.   

 A review the Emergency Response Process and Strategic Emergency 

Management of an incident has been completed in conjunction with the 

council’s senior management restructure. Future training and exercising are to 

be scheduled over the next few months with the Council’s Senior Leadership 

Team to undertake the role of Incident Controllers in an incident situation  

 Gateshead Council is continuing to provide leadership within the Northumbria 

Local Resilience Forum and, as of September 2019, chair and lead the Tactical 

Business Management Group - a multi-agency planning function group 

responsible for the coordination of all LRF activity and vice chair of the Strategic 

Board - a multi-agency planning function group to ensure there is an 

appropriate level of preparedness to enable an effective strategic response to 

emergencies. 
 

8.12   Over the next three-months the future priorities that will be focussed on, include: 

 future planning for both COVID-19 and other potential pandemic outbreaks;  

 reviewing and adapting the current emergency plans, protocols and 

procedures in line with national guidance to ensure practices of working 

safely during COVID-19 whilst continuing to work with partner organisations 

embracing new ways of working and use of virtual technology; and 

 monitoring the potential impacts of the UK’s exit from the EU working with 

colleagues across the Council to consider any relevant implications for 

Gateshead and assessing the Council’s readiness as the transition period 

evolves. 
  
 

Page 24



 

 

 Section B: Update on actions from previous report  
 

Action Thrive Pledge Service Area Update 

Employee 
Engagement 

Work 
Together  

Human  
Resources & 

Workforce 
Development 

2018 Employee Survey: 
Service Directors have been identifying actions from the survey where they feel they can make 
improvements, including: 

 Service managers attending other team meetings to raise the profile and promote their teams work; 

 Introduction of regular 6:1 meeting’s with strategic director and employees from across the group; 

 Ensuring Achievement & Development discussions are complete 

 Training plan included as part of service business planning, along with succession planning. 

 Regularly emailing the whole service providing regular updates and information. 

 Locating teams together where possible/feasible.  

 Rolling-out the Gateshead Leadership Development Programme (unfortunately delayed until 2021 as a 
result of the social distancing requirements). 

 Regularly reviewing flexible working practices  

 Encouraging employees to identify new ideas/ways of working that will enhance work-life balance and 
encourage managers to consider new ways of working which support employees work life balance.   

P
age 25



 

 

Action Thrive Pledge Service Area Update 

Workforce Plan Work 
Together  

Human  
Resources & 

Workforce 
Development 

Workforce Plan Refresh –  
 Discussions with Service Directors and their management teams took place to ascertain the needs of 

each group and their workforce requirements. The main themes which emerged: succession planning 
and how apprenticeships might support this; recruitment and retention to key roles; the ageing workforce, 
particularly in frontline services and how the public sector reform work can support the identification of 
core skills of the workforce of the future. The information will inform the content of a refreshed workforce 
plan; however, this work has been paused to enable a potentially different slant on the workforce plan to 
take account of the impact of COVID-19. 

 The 2020 pay award has not yet been agreed; unions are currently balloting their members on the 
current pay offer.  

 The uptake of apprenticeships remains steady, with over 124 employees now undertaking 
apprenticeships across the Council.  An apprenticeship strategy and delivery plan have been developed 
which aim to embed a positive apprenticeship culture across the Council.  The Apprenticeship Co-
ordinator is working closely with services to encourage investment in apprenticeships and maximising 
take-up of apprenticeship training across the workforce.  Engaging with providers to encourage 
participation and drive up apprenticeship delivery is an important aspect of this work.  There is also a 
focus on using apprenticeship levy funds to up-skill the current workforce.  

 The Leadership Development Programme was scheduled to commence in May 2020; however, this has 
been paused due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the need to socially distance.  New dates have been 
arranged for 2021. Work is however ongoing to refresh the Council’s corporate training programme to 
ensure that all employees have the skills needed going forward.  

 Employee salary sacrifice schemes and a financial wellbeing resource are continually reviewed, with a 
more flexible ‘cycle to work’ scheme being introduced this year.   
The Ways of Working Board has refreshed its aims and objectives, with an emphasis on embracing, 
longer term, the new ways of working which were thrust upon us during the pandemic.    

Equality Impact 
Monitoring 

Tackle 
Inequality  

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

Equality Impact Budget proposals 
Assessments of the budget proposals impact on equality characteristics have been made, with three 
budget proposals currently monitored by this committee now being recommended by services to require 
further monitoring. Committee will receive an update in the performance reporting for 2020/21.  

P
age 26



 

 

Action Thrive Pledge Service Area Update 

Tackling Poverty Tackle 
Inequality  

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

Tackling Poverty 

 The Council has worked closely with NEFirst Credit Union to bring about a premises move from their 
rarely visited branch at the bottom of the Interchange Building to a highly prominent shop front location 
on Jackson Street (the former Dawson & Sanderson travel agent site). This now provides NEFirst with 
the opportunity to raise its profile in Gateshead, grow its membership and offering much needed ethical 
and affordable financial services often to those who are financially excluded. 

 In addition, the Council has worked with a subgroup of the NEFirst Board to develop a rebrand, which 
launched earlier this year, giving a new and modern look for the business. 

 The Council has supported NEFirst financially via the Growth Reserve to cover costs associated with 
rents, rates and fit out costs, without which the move could not have taken place. 

 The Council continues to support NEFirst in its endeavours to develop a marketing and growth plan for 
Gateshead, which will be aided by the appointment of a Senior Council Officer to the NEFirst Board. 

 LEAP (Local Energy Assistance Partnership) provided a programme, which offered a free 1-2-1 home 
visit with a qualified energy advisor resulted in: 
 281 home visits; 
 3,217 individual energy efficiency measures installed in Gateshead homes; 
 £225,000 of additional annual income identified via referrals to Income Max charity; and 
 over £627K of lifetime energy bill savings identified for Gateshead households. 

 Accredited Level 2 ‘Fuel Debt Advice in the Community’ training was delivered to more frontline 
Council employees, ensuring they can identify and address fuel related issues for Gateshead 
households or refer to specialist services.  

Digital Programme Work 
Together 

Corporate 
Programme: 

 
IT Services 

 
Customer 

Experience & 
Digital 

Digital Customer Indicators 
With the advent of the new Digital Platform the use of online forms and services available have seen rises 
in online uses across the indicators. This is expected to have consistent rises in percentage of actions year 
in year as more services come online. The focus for the immediate short term period is to continue to 
respond to the impact of Covid19 with the digital capabilities now coming to the fore such as the closure of 
the Civic Centre seeing a reduction in cash payments but a rise in online payments. 

Trading Work 
Together 

Commercialisation 
& Improvement 

    Services to Schools 

    Throughout the year the Council has continued to develop its co-ordinated and more customer focused 
approach to schools. Positive discussions have been held with schools and these have used to shape 
the offer to meet school needs. This resulted in just under 200 different packages being available to 
schools. The quality of services continues to be high, for example, the catering service was singled out 
for the fourth year running by APSE as the UK’s top performing school meals provider for quality, cost 
and productivity. 

P
age 27



 

 

 
Section C: Performance Overview  
 

Indicator Thrive Pledge 
Service 
Director 

Lead 

Target 
2020 

Most recent 
performance- 

Year End 
2019/20 

Direction 
of Travel 

Comments and Actions 

IE01 % of Council Tax 
collected that was due 
to be paid 

Invest in our 
Economy 

Marisa 
Jobling 

95.7.6% 95.9% 

 

For the year 2019/20, council tax collection of 95.9% is slightly up on the 
previous year’s performance of 95.7% with an additional £5.5m of Council 
tax collected. Universal Credit continues to have a negative impact on 
collection although the Council ensures empathetic support is provided to 
reflect individual circumstances  

IE02 % of Business 
Rates collected 

Invest in our 
Economy 

Marisa 
Jobling 

98% 97.5% 

 

  For the year 2018/19 business rates collection of 97.5% was slightly below 
the previous year’s performance of 98%. The Covid19 period has impacted 
on this figure as some payments due in late March 2020 were not able to 
be made. 

IE03 % of undisputed 
invoices paid on time 

Invest in our 
Economy 

John 
Shiel 

95% 87.7% 

 

  For the year 2019/20 there has been a sustained improvement from 
2017/18 with significant improvement from the level 78.9% which has 
largely been achieved from the continued growth of purchase cards and 
the review of business processes to allow speedier payment of invoices. 

IE04 Improve Superfast 
Broadband 
connectivity-increase 
coverage in Gateshead  

Invest in our 
Economy 

Roy 
Sheehan 

Increase 97.7% 

 

 The direction of travel continues to remain positive with a further increase 
during the year. The number of premises able to obtain fibre optic based 
superfast broadband is now available to 97.7% of premises in Gateshead 
which compares favourably against the UK average figure of 96.4%. 

IE05 Increase in new 
Services to Schools 
business generated 

Invest in our 
Economy 

Lindsay 
Murray 

Increase £12.6m 
Not 

available 
   Year 2019/20 represents the baseline year.  

PF01 Speed of housing 
benefits claims 
(processing) – average 
time to process new 
claims & changes in 
circumstances 

People and 
Families 

Marisa 
Jobling 

6.2 days 3.12 days 

 

   Performance for 2019/20 again shows further improvement compared to 
previous year’s performance of 6.2 days. Following a reduction in 
Universal Credit caseload and prioritising Housing benefit claims. IT 
improvements have also been introduced to allow further automation of 
changes of circumstances and customer self-service. 

PF02 Ensure young 
people leaving care are 
supported to have an 
opportunity in the 
Council for an 
apprenticeship 

People and 
Families 

Janice   
Barclay 

 

Year on 
year 

increase 
2 

 

 
 

 

 2019/2020 – During the 19/20 financial year, there were 2 care leaver 
apprentices on programmes. 1 apprentice completed their 
apprenticeship in Dec 2019 and secured further employment within the 
Council and has subsequently secured a further promotion to a higher 
position. The other apprentice is still on programme, due to complete in 
Summer 2020. 

 The Apprenticeship Co-ordinator is continuing to explore 
apprenticeships for LAC and care leavers and ensure that the relevant 

P
age 28



 

 

Indicator Thrive Pledge 
Service 
Director 

Lead 

Target 
2020 

Most recent 
performance- 

Year End 
2019/20 

Direction 
of Travel 

Comments and Actions 

support is in place to ensure these apprenticeships are successful. 

 The Council has developed an Apprenticeship Strategy and 
underpinning Delivery Plan. One of the keys aims of the strategy and 
delivery plan is that the Council, acting in its capacity as corporate 
parent, will ensure that young people leaving care are supported to 
have access to Apprenticeships, but can also sustain, succeed and 
progress into further employment. 

 The application process for apprentices is under review to make it 
easier for young people such as LAC and care leavers to access and 
apply for Council apprenticeships. 

WT01 Employee 
engagement e.g. a 
good place to work 

Work 
Together 

Janice  
Barclay 

70% 
(2016) 

73% 
(2018 - most 

recent) 

No new 
data 

  The 2018 staff survey saw an increase in council employees feeling 
Gateshead is a good place to work from 64% in the 2016 survey to 73% in 
2018 - surpassing the target for 2020. Following a senior management 
review in 2019/20 further consultation activity will occur once new working 
arrangements have been fully established. 

WT02 Staff sickness 
(excluding school staff) 
per FTE 

Work 
Together 

   Janice    
Barclay 

8.0 days 11.9 days 

 

The average sickness days per FTE for the period 2019-20 was 11.9, a 
slight increase from 11.4 in 2018-19.  

 HR will continue to provide performance dashboards and detailed 
data to services and provide advice/support, so managers can take 
appropriate action.  

 The Council will strive to become ‘ambassador’ status under the North 
East Better Health at Work Award.  

 Implement the action plan in relation to the ‘Time to Change Pledge’ 
to reduce the stigma around mental health issues and enable 
employees to access appropriate support, hopefully before they feel a 
need to take sick leave, will continue. 

 Managing the menopause is a new theme where the Council is 
working in partnership with Unison to develop support, information 
and advice for women who suffer from menopausal symptoms, and 
for managers and other staff (male and female) with a view to 
mainstreaming this topic.   

 Strategic Directors & Service Directors will continue to monitor and 
address absence.  

 As anxiety, stress and depression is one of the key reasons for long 
term sickness in the council. Focus has been given to campaigns, 
information and activities around these issues.  Examples include 

P
age 29



 

 

Indicator Thrive Pledge 
Service 
Director 

Lead 

Target 
2020 

Most recent 
performance- 

Year End 
2019/20 

Direction 
of Travel 

Comments and Actions 

displaying posters, providing information for further support through 
employee bulletins and supporting stress awareness week by creating 
opportunities for one to one or group discussions.  

 A relaxation breathing video was also created and focus groups have 
also taken place to assess training needs to support employees with 
mental health issues.   

SC01 Percentage 
increase in online 
transactions: 

a) Online payments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supporting 
our 

Communities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marisa 
Jobling 

 
 
  +18.2% 
(£18.48m

) 
 
 
 

 
57.4% 

 
 
 

+3.86% 
 
 
 
 

Baseline 
year 

 
 
 
 

Baseline 
year 

 
 

+15% 
(£21.26m) 

 

 

  In 2018-19, we received £18.48m in income from online payments which is 
a 18.7% increase from the previous year. This figure rose to £21.26m in 
2019/20. We expect this figure to rise substantially as we continue to 
increase the number of payments that can be made on our websites. 

SC02 Percentage 
increase in online 
transactions: 

b) Fly-tipping reports 
 

 
 

+7.8% 
(65.2%) 

 

  5,003 fly tips reported by the public in 2018/19, 57.4% reported online and 
42.65% recorded over the telephone. The 2019/20 data reveals 5,145 fly 
tips were reported by the public with more people reporting online at 65.2% 
and 34.8% recorded over the telephone. 

SC03 Percentage 
increase in online 
transactions 

c) Garden Waste 
subscriptions 

 
 

+5.12% 

  17,710 (71.5%) subscriptions were made using the new Digital Platform 
compared to 16,275 (66.38%) garden waste subscriptions paid for online 
in 2018/19 and 15,793 in 2017/18. 

SC04 Percentage 
increase in online 
transactions 

d) Registrars 
appointments 

 
 

56.44% 

  Online Registrars birth and death appointments were launched on 13 
March 2019 using the new Digital Platform, therefore, 2019/20 is the first 
full baseline year. During this period 4,403 birth and death registration 
appointments were made with 56.44% made online and 43.65% made 
using the telephone (70.46% for births and 44.43% for death registrations).  

SC05 Percentage 
increase in online 
transactions 

d) Adult social care 
forms 

 
 

4,264 online 
contact forms 

  Since the Adult Social Care online forms were launched in November 
2018, making 2019/20 a baseline year for full data recording. Of the 4,265 
online forms 41.22% were social care assessments; 27.1% were social 
care reviews; 27.06% were social care enquiries and 4.61% were 
submitted by practitioners. 

P
age 30



 

 

APPENDIX 1 
1.0 Equality Impact Assessment  
1.1 The Council’s strategic approach of Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone 

Thrives identifies a commitment to reduce the levels of inequality that are 
apparent within the borough.  

 
1.2 To achieve a balanced budget in 2019/20, the Council reviewed all areas of 

spend which, in some instances, resulted in budget proposals that reduced 
service provision that directly supports the protected characteristics as defined 
under the Equality Act 2010. The Council’s role is to mitigate the levels of 
disproportionate impact identified in the equality impact assessments, wherever 
possible, following implementation of proposals.  

 

2.0 Monitoring the impact of budget proposals  
2.1 The Public Sector Equality Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the 

need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 2010; advance equality of opportunity 
between people from different groups; and foster good relations between people 
from different groups.  

 

2.2  Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) on the individual budget proposals identifies 
any disproportionate impact in relation to the protected characteristics as 
described within the Equality Act 2010. The assessments also identify mitigation 
where applicable.   

 
2.3  Several budget proposals were considered as having a positive or neutral 

impact. However, the following proposals where potential disproportionate 
impact was highlighted, along with possible mitigation, are set out below:  

 
2017/18 & 2018/19 - Review of commissioned arrangements/supporting people 
voluntary organisations  
2.4  The SAILS - supported and independent living services for young people 

Housing pathway for people aged 16 to 25 years commenced in July 2018. The 
following outputs are for the period July 2019 to Match 2020 and include: 

 a total of 89 young people accessed the service from 121 referrals; 

 27 young people were successfully referred to the High Needs, Clinical 
intervention, Shared Living Service; 

 12 young people were successfully referred to the Taster Flats Service; 

 of 121 referrals, 38 young people moved outside the pathway, i.e. not 
homeless or in custody; and 

 13 moved in with family or friends; 
 

2.5    All 6 services that constitute the SAILS Pathway are under ongoing review and 
scrutiny via KPI returns, Outcomes Scoring Data, the functioning of the multi-
disciplinary panel, individual contact with care management, Psychologically 
Informed Environments/ Psychologically Informed Practice self-assessment 
reviews, and quality assurance visits by a dedicated contract management 
officer. 

 

2.6   Durham University is to prepare an outline proposal for a piece of further 
research to evaluate the journey for people through SAILS pathway.  

Page 31



 

 

 
2018/19 – Review of Carers Services  
2.7 The Carers service was awarded in 1st May 2019. This will continue to the 30th 

April 2024, jointly funded by NewcastleGateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 

and Gateshead Council. The Commissioning Team from Gateshead Council’s 

Children, Adult’s & Families directorate continue to monitor the mobilisation of 

the services and work with the two service providers to ensure that there is a 

smooth transition of staff and service users. The award was to:  

 Carers Trust Tyne & Wear for support to young carers up to 18 years  

 Gateshead Carers Association are responsible for delivering services to 

support adult carers aged 18 years and over.  

2.8   The Carers Partnership role will be to refresh the Carers Strategy. This work is 

still to commence as the primary priority has been to support carers and their 

families during the pandemic and to ensure the services are effective.   

2.9   Officers in the commissioning team have stayed in contact with the services and 

both have been offering a full-service offer to Gateshead Carers, with regular 

contact with existing carers through welfare calls, plus offered carers 

assessments to new carers and been able to actively provide advice and 

guidance about any support needs. 

2.10 In preparation for a potential lockdown for the Young Carers Service, the team 

created a list of families that were already priority service users, as well as those 

living in single-parent families. Once lockdown began, the team made regular 

contact with the families to check how they were coping and explore any support 

needs. From the end of March to the end of April over 200 calls to families were 

made, resulting in six families being referred to some form of food support. We 

continue maintain a priority check in list that is regularly reviewed and refreshed. 

In most cases, families are experiencing some form of isolation and appreciate 

that someone is checking in on how they’re doing. 

2.11 We anticipated that we would not be able to provide face to face services to 

young carers for the foreseeable future so decided to explore how we could 

continue to provide alternative services, including online. We continued to 

provide children’s activity packs to young carers age 5-7. Children in Need and 

Tyne and Wear Sport have supported us to create online yoga and physical 

activity videos for young carers of different ages. These are created in-house by 

a member of the team, as well as by local partners Spirit Level Yoga and film-

maker Mani Kambo. Using Zoom, we have also started to deliver online peer 

support groups. These are based around an art activity that we send to families 

in the post and then complete together in a video call. Our online work is in its 

early stages. Engagement is still limited and has its challenges, but we hope that 

it will prove to be a valuable addition to the services that we offer as we move 

out of lockdown.  

2.12 With young carers, we are also exploring ways we can support using the   

wellbeing fund, to enhance the IT offer for those individuals to allow them to 

support their education and contact during the lockdown and beyond. 

Page 32



 

 

 
2019/20 - New Accommodation Charge for Aftercare Post Discharge from 
Hospital  

2.13 External legal advice has identified practical difficulties quantifying the cost of 
accommodation at a care home. That difficulty arises due to the nature of the   
care home provision, where care and accommodation are provided. That 
characteristics means that not only would the calculation be difficult in practical 
terms but as a matter of principle, you cannot separate the accommodation 
provision from the care provision. Further consideration, in regard of this advice 
will now need to be made.  

  
2020/21 Budget Proposals 

2.14 There were no new proposals identified as affecting protected characteristics as 
part of the 2020/21 budget setting process. 

 
  

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives - End of Year Assessment of Performance and Delivery 2019/20 and Impact of COVID-19

